
This is a business meeting of the governing body for the City of Herington. There 
is no implied or expressed right for persons outside the governing body to speak 

or voice their opinion unless specifically recognized by the chair. 

Regular Meeting 
February 6, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Call to Order

3. Public Forum

4. Approval of Agenda

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________
Commissioner Naylor, Commissioner Scarff, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Bell,
Mayor Gares 

5. Consent Agenda 
a. Minutes of the Regular Commission Meeting January 16, 2024 
b. Janet Wade and Marcus Hawkes Renewal of Membership to CVB (2-year term)

6. Engagement Letter for Lindburg, Vogel, Pierce, Faris for Audit services for the 2023 year – Audit
to start 4/29/2024 

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner Naylor, Commissioner Scarff, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Bell 
Mayor Gares 

7. Receive and File Department Head Presentations and 2023 Updates
a. Water Treatment
b. Water Distribution
c. Sewer
d. Neighborhood Services Update

8. Consider bid for repair of Raw Water line near Railroad, authorize Purchase of $21,453.31 from 
Core & Main to be paid from Water Distribution and Water Treatment Budget
Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner Naylor, Commissioner Scarff, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Bell,
Mayor Gares

9. Consider funding to replace Raw Water Line near Railroad, for an amount not to exceed $65,000 
to be paid from Water Treatment Budget, Water Distribution Budget, and City Reserve Funds
(Attachments Pending)
Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner Naylor, Commissioner Scarff, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Bell,
Mayor Gares

DRAFT



10. Consider Updated FEMA Floodplain Ordinance
Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner Naylor, Commissioner Scarff, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Bell,
Mayor Gares

11. Ampride ROW Vacation Consideration and Authorization of Survey (Attachments Pending) 
Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner Naylor, Commissioner Scarff, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Bell,
Mayor Gares

12. Consider and Approve Agreement for Lift Station Maintenance with Casey’s
Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________ 
Commissioner Naylor, Commissioner Scarff, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Bell,
Mayor Gares

13. Consider Approval of Finalized UPTICC Agreement

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________
Commissioner Naylor, Commissioner Scarff, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Bell 
Mayor Gares  

14. Consider dates for Governing Body Retreat in April 2024 

15. City Manager Comments 

16. Commissioner Comments 

17. Adjourn

Motion ___________________ Seconded __________________ Action _____________
Commissioner Naylor, Commissioner Scarff, Commissioner McDonald, Commissioner Bell,
Mayor Gares

To join the City Commission meetings from your computer, tablet, or smartphone, go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCbvSBw6l4w85XQHSX0S1BXg Public Forum Comments can be 
dropped in the deposit box or emailed to cityoffice@cityofherington.com.  

DRAFT

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCbvSBw6l4w85XQHSX0S1BXg
mailto:cityoffice@cityofherington.com


Regular Meeting 
January 16, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

The Herington City Commission met on the above date and time in the commission chambers at city hall. 
In attendance were Mayor Eric Gares, Commissioner Robbin Bell, Commissioner Dan McDonald, 
Commissioner Dalton Scarff, Commissioner Cynthia Naylor, City Attorney Brad Jantz, City Clerk Megan 
Lawrenz, Hilltop Director Lori Dornbusch, Light Superintendent David Kahle, Neighborhood Services 
Director James Masters, Chief of Police Chad Langley and Fire Chief Andrew Avantagiato. Also in 
attendance were Christina McDonald, Rhonda Rice, and David Leithoff.  

The meeting opened with the pledge of allegiance. 

Mayor Gares called the meeting to order. 

Public Forum – None. 

Approval of Agenda - Remove 5d from the consent agenda and make it 5.1. Remove 7b. Add 6a – Raw 
Waterline- Commissioner Naylor made a motion to approve the agenda with the listed changes, 
seconded by Commissioner Bell. Motion carried 5-0.   

Consent Agenda – Commissioner Bell made a motion to approve the following consent agenda items; 
Minutes of the Regular Commission Meeting January 2, 2024, designating First National Bank of Hope 
and Central National Bank as the City of Herington official banks, and designating the Dickinson County 
News Times as the City of Herington official paper, seconded by Mayor Gares. Motion carried 5-0. 

5.1 - Engagement Letter for Lindburg, Vogel, Pierce, Faris for Audit services for the 2023 year. After 
discussion the Commissioners requested that staff contact the Auditors and try to schedule their services 
sooner. 

Consider Request for Emprise Bank to Enter Payment Plan for Outstanding Hospital Utilities for 
$18,218.14 for the months of November and December 2023. All bills will be paid in the future unless 30 
days’ notice is given. Commissioner Bell made a motion to approve the payment plan between Emprise 
Bank and the City of Herington for $18,218.14, seconded by Commissioner McDonald. Motion carried 5-
0. 

6a. Raw water line – Staff informed the commission that someone could come tomorrow to inspect the 
raw water line and give an estimate to bore under the railroad line to replace the pipes. The city has 
permission from the railroad to do so. The water department has approximately $45,000 in the budget for 
this project. Commissioner Bell made a motion to approve the inspection and get bids to repair, seconded 
by Commissioner Naylor. Motion carried 5-0. 

Receive and File Department Head Presentations and 2023 Updates -  

Hilltop and Community Building Director –  

Accomplishments in 2023 – Projects and replacements for 2024/2025 

Hilltop Community Center:  

2023 Hilltop Center Evaluation and Assessment-  

An individual on the NC-FH AAA board walks through the whole facility with myself, checking the building 
as a whole, proper notices for employees and patrons, the safety of all areas, cleanliness, up to code in 
kitchen, dining room, restrooms, food storage, etc.   

Our facility had an excellent assessment score! Letter included! 

DRAFT



Kansas Department of Agriculture and Food inspection-2023 

Yearly Inspection to keep in compliance for food license.  We had 0 violations, which is very rare for they 
usually find one or two even small things to ding a place on.  Cris Bayes is on top of our facilities 
kitchen and does a wonderful job and keeping everything safe and up to code.  

KDOT 2023 Audit on Public Transportation Bus- 

This audit is conducted every 3-4 years at each transportation site.  Auditors come, check all KDOT bus 
logs, reports, employees information including drug and alcohol procedures, financial logs, inspect the 
bus for any safety issues or items not updated.   

The bus is inspected by the KDOT Transportation Inspector once a year.  Both transportation bus drivers, 
Ron Gabe and Rick Hart are really great at helping keep the bus clean and doing pre and post trip 
inspections each day.  They both are very caring and always are willing to help out our customers.   

We had a couple small items that need to be completed within 6 months, but other than that we are in 
compliance.  The need for an infant seat which was addressed, we will either partnership with police and 
fire or purchase one ourselves. A grab handle is also needing replaced.  It is ordered and Dwayne 
Dittman will be installing that. 

KDOT SFY 2025 5311 Application Grant for Operation and Administrative Assistance was completed 
and submitted by myself in November 2023.  This application grant is written and submitted every year to 
insure operating assistance and reimbursement for the Herington City Public Bus system.  KDOT 
reimburses 70-80% for all operating expenses which include, fuel, insurance, advertising, maintenance, 
drivers payroll and some additional admin assistance.    

All facilities 

My department was without a reliable custodian for all the buildings for many months.  With the new hire 
of B. Federle, we have been doing major deep cleaning here at the Hilltop Center, at the Community 
Building and the Homestead Village Apartments and also the City Office.  

The community building has been totally repainted within.  All white table and chairs are being deep 
cleaned and will take several months.  It’s a project that is worked on as time allows.  With the purchase 
of a new steam cleaner, the process is going rather easy and quicker.   

2024/2025 : Research for flooring company’s to replace, refinish and or strip and wax the Community 
Building concrete flooring and tile floors throughout the building. Looking at a sealant or epoxy for large 
floor.    

Both the Hilltop Center and Community Building kitchen hood systems were cleaned by a professional 
company out of Salina.  This included all vents and exhaust fans.  

The overhead hood system at both facilities were inspected by Air and Fire and they were both in 
compliance and alarm system at Hilltop is in excellent condition. 

In 2023 we were gifted with a donation for a new ice machine for the Hilltop Center. Other donations for 
the Hilltop and Homestead Village were several large shelf (storage) units.  Four units to be exact.   

At the Homestead Village Apt. and Hilltop Apt. all units are being updated for new tenants coming in.  It’s 
an ongoing process.   

Josh Alexander is the Maintenance Tech and does a terrific job and With the help of our SER 
maintenance assistant, Allen Nees, they both are working daily at getting all units updated, between snow 
removal, appliance replacements, heating and air unit upgrades, weather related issues and other 
projects that arise.  As apartments are being updated, we are implementing a replacement plan for all 

DRAFT



equipment and appliances throughout all facilities.  In 2023 we have replaced and updated the Hilltop 
Dining/Kitchen heating and air unit, a unit at the Hilltop and two units at the Homestead Village.  Also on 
the replacement agenda are new appliances.  As of the last year we have added several new 
refrigerators, dish washers, and electric ranges.  These are on a rotation process.  

At the Hilltop over 50% of lighting has been switched over to LED lighting 

At the Homestead Village a new concrete drive and parking area was replaced for a four garage area.  
Other concrete work and low elevation areas are planned for upgrades in the 2024/25 year. 

Homestead Village Clubhouse renovation/upgrade is on the 2024/25 agenda too. 

Water Distribution Department - Postpone 

Sewer Department Supervisor - Postpone 

Electrical Department Supervisor - Electric Department 

1/5/24 

I am David Kahle, Electric Superintendent for the City Herington. I have worked for the city for 25 years. 
The electrical department maintains and upgrades the electrical distribution system. There are 3 full-time 
employees in the department.  The meter reader position t is split between the electrical department and 
the water department. 

Daily duties include maintenance of equipment, safety checks on our PPE (rubber gloves, rubber 
sleeves) and making sure we have adequate supplies to complete the daily duties or projects. We take 
care of work orders and trim tree branches back away from the electric lines. We check on the 
infrastructure for damage that could cause an outage or potentially a danger to someone. This would 
include repairs poles, crossarms, transformers, secondary services to residential and Businesses. Our 
duties also include exchanging out old electric meters and updating them for new radio read meters. We 
should have all the electric meters replaced this year, providing we receive all of the meters this years. 
We maintain the camping pedestal at both lakes. The department is working to replaces all the street light 
over to LED fixture.  If another department is in needs help, we try to work with one another to get the 
jobs done. 

Major accomplishments / projects for 2023. 

Installation of new EV charger station by Pizza Hut. 

Replaced a pole at alley entrance on Trapp Street and between Broadway and 1st street. The pole has 3 
different circuits on it. We were able to do this and keep all the customers on, which includes most 
uptown businesses. 

The purchase of a new bucket truck. It will be approximately 36 months for delivery. 

Approval for new controls for the existing generator and new generator. The new generator will take 
approximately 3 years to receive.  The city is working with KMEA to have the new generator and controls 
installed. The plan is to install the new controls sometime in June or July 2024. 

The installation of the walking path from Logan Steet to the school parking lot along N C street. This was 
in coordination with the Street Department to clear all trees and build the path. Lighting for the walking 
path was also completed.  

Projects for 2024 

Finish installing the underground electrical for the new Casey’s building.  Current completion is scheduled 
for the end of January. 

DRAFT



Replace the poles at the raw water pump house and update the metering for it. This will have to be 
coordinated with the water plant department. 

Replace the transformer poles behind city.  This will require the City Office and School Board Office to be 
without power for an extended time.  A shut down will be required, unless the work can be done on a 
weekend.  This project will require at least 2 days. 

Relocation for the transformer bull pin to the east side of electrical storage building will require concrete, 
and a fencer installed. I am working with the Water Department to relocate our storage of supplies from 
their current location.  

Finish the replacement of the South Broadway Island Street lights. This project started several years ago 
was put on hold. We have most of the material needed to finish the project. 

Continue replacing old or damaged poles in the distribution system.  We will concentrate on the area 
between Broadway and 1st Street, starting at Trapp Street north to Arnold Street.  

Continue to place porcelain cutouts in the distribution system. The porcelain cutouts are failing and 
causing outages.  Several other towns are experiencing the same problem. 

Neighborhood Services Director – 

There were 107 complaints and 695 inspections for the year 2023. 

Grass Violations 

1. Implemented new grass ordinance. 
2. 220 Grass inspections 
3. 125 Grass violation written. 
4. 53 Cut orders issued. 
5. 43 yards mowed. 

a. The city mowed 35 yards.  
b. Contractors mowed 8 yards.

City Code Violations 

1. Wrote 27 violations.

Building permits 

1. Issued a total of 148 permits with 201 inspections.
2. Issued 49 building permits with 61 inspections.
3. Issued 42 electrical permits with 59 inspections.
4. Issued 16 mechanical permits with 24 inspections.
5. Issued 31 plumbing permits with 49 inspections.
6. Issued 7 demolition permits with 7 inspections.
7. Issued 2 sign permits with 1 inspection.

Electrical Service turn on. 

1. 66 electrical service inspections

57 structural building inspections 

DRAFT



There were 5 dangerous structure hearings. 

1. 3 structures were ordered demolished.
2. 2 structures ordered repaired.

Worked with the Board of Construction, Trades, and Appeals for a new ordinance on licensing and fees. 

Helped with new ordinance for manufactured houses. 

901 E Arnold, Herington Park LLC 

Manufactured house on lots #1, #19, and #23 ordered to removed. 

Owners also are removing manufactured houses on lots #10, #20, and #22. 

Police Chief -  

Fire Chief -  

Commissioner Comments 

Commssioner Naylor _ Hopes everyone is staying warm. Appreciates staff keeping streets clean. 

Commissioner Scarff - None. 

Commissioner McDonald – Asked if the city has a plan in place to open the Community Building for 
shelter if needed.  

Commissioner Bell – Nothing 

Commissioner Gares - Nothing. 

Adjourn – Commissioner Bell made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Naylor. Motion 
carried 5-0. 

_________________________ 
Megan Lawrenz, City Clerk 

DRAFT



1/4/2024 

Mayor Gares 

Herington city commissioners 

 

My name is Leo Schlesener, this is my profile as an employee for the city of Herington, and a brief job 
summary for me and my achievements for 2023 and goals for 2024. I was summer help for 6 years prior 
to going full-�me. I have been employed with the city for 35 years. During that �me, I was Street 
Superintendent for 25 years. Cemetery Sexton for 29 years. Water plant superintendent for 1 ½ years, 
and a volunteer firefighter for 30 years and currently holding the posi�on of assistant chief. 

In august of 2022 I assumed the responsibility of Water plant superintendent. I have 1 employee besides 
myself that operates the plant. That is Andrew Reese. Since that �me, we have operated the plant 24 
hours a day. We maintain chemical feed levels, do maintenance on the equipment, do lab tests daily, and 
take samples for state tes�ng. We have done a lot of cleaning up a�er the construc�on of the plant and 
made addi�onal upgrades to the plant that were not done due to cuts in the project. Such as replaced 
the main concrete entrance, added Ozone injec�on point access, extended the retaining wall behind the 
plant, and got addi�onal training and maintenance for us on the Ozone system. We also had several 
leaks on the raw water line that brings water from the lake to the plant. With those repairs brings me to 
the goals for 2024. The main goal for me is to work very closely with Mr. Moddie and get him any 
addi�onal informa�on that he might need to keep his work of ge�ng the city a grant to replace the raw 
water line. He has completed the first step in ge�ng the grant. My next task will be to get the whole 
town inventoried for lead and copper services. K.D.H.E. is manda�ng that all water systems have this 
done by October 2024. Cody Oswald, the water distribu�on superintendent, and I are working together 
to get this done. We will keep you updated on that process. K.D.H.E. is also strongly recommending that 
we install a backup generator at the pumphouse at the lake, you will be updated on this as well. The final 
item is to build a building to store our truck, forkli�, and chemicals, since those items are not to be 
stored inside the plant, and in the design of the plant, storage for these items were not included in the 
plan. 

I hope that this informa�on is helpful to you about who I am and what we do at the plant. The office for 
the plant is at 435 south 5th street. Our normal hours are M-F 7:00-4:00 My cell phone number is 785-
258-0426 If you ever have any ques�ons or want to stop by you are welcome at any �me.  

 

Sincerely 

Leo Schlesener  

DRAFT



 

Water Distribution 2023 Accomplishments and 2024 
Projects 

My name is Cody Oswald. I have worked for the City of Herington for 5 years in the water 
distribution. In February of 2023 I took over as water distribution supervisor.  

Water Distribution has two full-time employees. The meter reader position helps in my 
department when they are not reading meters or doing their day-to-day duties. We are 
responsible for water and sewer lines including any repairs or new installations of lines and 
services. We also do all locates of water and sewer lines when someone calls dig safe.  

• For 2023 we finished our A street water line project. This included finishing hooking 20 
water services to the new water main. Also, we were able to abandon 4 blocks of the 
old water line and remove two old fire hydrants.  

• With the new Casey’s building being built, we had contractors install a new 4-inch water 
main from the 800 block of East Trapp to the east side of the Casey’s. Where we also 
had them install a fire hydrant. Once they finished installing the main the city went back 
and hooked up 6 houses, 1 church and 2 meters for Caseys. That allowed us to abandon 
the old line the was feeding those houses. 

2024 Projects 
• Install a fire hydrant at the airport to help fill tanker 95. Installing this fire hydrant will 

also help with fire protection. This project will consist of installing approximately 400 
feet of 6-inch water line.  

• I would like to start installing a new water line in north A street from Vine Street to 
Chestnut. We see a lot of water line breaks in this stretch of line. 

• Lastly, I would like to start installing more water meter radio reads. The city has had a 
lot of the older water meters changed to the new style. This will help with the time it 
takes to read meters for monthly billing.  
 

 

 

DRAFT



                                                                    City of Herington 

 

City Manager and Commissioners, 

 

The Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) is operated by 2 full �me city employees Jason Alt and Cliff 
Stokes. Jason has been with the city for 24 years and has a Class 2 cer�fica�on in both water and 
wastewater. Cliff has been with the city for 11 years and is working on his Class 1 cer�fica�on. The facility 
runs 24 hours a day 7 days a week and the daily opera�ons of the plant consists of daily readings on 
influent and effluent flow, removing rags and other debris out of the system, was�ng sludge to the 
digester, dewatering biosolids and disposing of it on crop land, cleaning bulbs on the UV system weekly, 
monthly reports to KDHE and doing maintenance on all of the equipment. 

Our facility is an Ac�vated Sludge system which requires dissolved oxygen (DO) to break down the waste. 
The influent flow comes into the plant and the screw pumps li�s the raw sewage up 15� and then 
through a manual bar screen and then through a Parshall flume where it is metered. Next it goes to a 
division box where the flow is split 4 ways and then to the aera�on basin which has 4 zones. From there 
it goes to one of the two clarifiers to start setling out the solids. We return some of the solids back to 
the aera�on basin to keep the biological process going and we will waste some solids to the digester to 
get it out of the system. The solids get pumped to the screw press to get dewater. The clear water goes 
over the weirs of the clarifier to the UV system to get disinfected and then discharged into the creek. 

The WWTF was upgraded to aera�on in 1978 and all the major equipment is s�ll being used. We have a 
hard �me finding parts for the screw pumps. In 2020 we did phase 1 of the project and installed a screw 
press to dewater sludge instead of liquid applying sludge to the crop land. In 2023 we started the process 
of phase 2 of the project which will include replacing the screw pumps (3) with either screw pumps or 
submersible pumps, installing a mechanical bar screen for removing rags, installing (2) blowers for 
aera�on and all piping, valves and diffusers, DO probes in aera�on basin to monitor levels, a generator 
that will power all the facility, manure spreader and replace all the major electrical components. Around 
2030 is scheduled to be phase 3 of the project which will include new waste pump (1), return pumps (2), 
rebuild the clarifiers and upgrade the UV system. 

In 2024 we hope to have started the phase 2 upgrades because the equipment is old and wore out. If 
you have �me someday stop by the facility and we will give you a tour. 

 

Jason Alt 

Wastewater Supervisor 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT



  

 

 

DRAFT



Run Date:  1/31/24 Quote
Customer # 137008
Order # U314385
Date Ordered 01/31/24
Job #
Job Name
Customer Reference LEO
Purchase Order # 12"WATER PLANT QUOTE
Method of Shipment OUR TRUCK
Contract Order # 0000000
Ordered By
Ship Via CORE & MAIN LP

Sold To: Ship To: Branch:
HERINGTON KANSAS CITY OF HERINGTON KANSAS CITY OF MCPHERSON KS
PO BOX 31 17 NORTH BROADWAY Branch - 344
HERINGTON, KS  67449 0031 HERINGTON, KS  67449 600 Old 81 Highway

McPherson, KS  67460

Phone:  620-241-3865

Bid Qty Qty Qty
Seq# Product Code Description Ordered Shipped B/O Net Price UOM Ext Price

0312021YM         12 SDR21 PR200 YELOMINE PIPE     240     48.36000 FT   11606.40
0312021           12 PVC SDR21 PR200 PIPE (G)      80     41.01000 FT    3280.80
21I124M           12 MJ 45 C153 IMP       4    354.20000 EA    1416.80
21I12T120M        12 MJ TEE C153 IMP       1    567.00000 EA     567.00
21IAMMJR12        12 MJ REGULAR ACC SET (I)       1     77.44000 EA      77.44
21IAMMJT12        12 MJ TRAN ACC SET IMP      11     78.97000 EA     868.67
96TW12PE45B       #12 CCSX500 BLUE PE45 TRACER W     500       .17000 FT      85.00
/80017650742      ESW1218 END SEAL WRAP       2     88.10000 EA     176.20
/80017650743      CSS8-1218-SS-CR 8"WIDE CASING      30    112.50000 EA    3375.00

SPACER 2X2 PATTERN

Terms in accordance with shipping manifest.

Special Instructions/Comments:
WARNING-HEAVY ITEM-LIFT ASSISTANCE REQ'D

Total Ordered:     21453.31
Tax Amount:        .00
Other Charges:        .00
Total:     21453.31

  1

DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



 

 
1 

 
LIFT STATION MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 
THIS LIFT STATION MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT, made this ____ day of 

_____________________, 2024 by and between Casey’s Retail Company, an Iowa Corporation 
with it headquarters located at One S.E. Convenience Boulevard, Ankeny, Iowa (hereinafter 
referred to as “Casey’s”), and the City of Herington, 17 N. Broadway, Herington, KS 67449, a 
municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “City”), 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, Casey's is the owner of certain real estate commonly known as 902 E. Trapp 

Street, Herington, Kansas legally described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto (“Casey’s Property”) 
upon which Casey’s intends to construct and operate a convenience store with motor fuel facilities; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has agreed to contract an extension of the City’s sanitary sewer 

facilities to connect the Casey’s Property to the City’s sanitary sewer system; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City’s extension of the sanitary sewer will include a lift station (the “Lift 

Station”) to allow the Casey’s Property to connect and utilize the City’s sanitary sewer system; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties wish to create for themselves, their heirs, successors, and assigns 

a maintenance agreement related to the Lift Station for the benefit of the parties, upon the terms 
and conditions herein contained. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good 

and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
parties herein agree as follows: 

 
 1. As part of the extension of the City’s sanitary sewer to the Casey’s Property, the 
City shall construct the Lift Station and electric meter on City property or KDOT right of way.    
 

2. Following construction of the Lift Station, Casey’s shall be responsible for 
maintenance and repair of the Lift Station, including the following elements: pumps, check valves, 
ball valves, pipe fittings inside the lift station, floats; guide rails and pump retrieval system; and 
control panel function and repair of control panel components. 
 

3. The City shall remain responsible for any structural issues with the manhole and 
maintenance or repair of the forced main starting at connection to the Lift Station. 

 
4. Nothing herein shall affect Casey’s obligation to pay standard water and sewer 

usage fees.    
 

DRAFT



 

 
2 

5. Casey’s shall be responsible for payment of electric utility service for the operation 
of the Lift Station.  
 
 6. Any additional tie ins to the Lift Station or use of the Lift Station by any third party 
or for the benefit of any other property shall be subject to Casey’s written approval which may be 
conditioned upon Casey’s satisfaction that sufficient capacity exists in the Lift Station, and any 
third party agreeing to share in the maintenance of the Lift Station and its share of utilities.  
 

7. Casey’s grants to the City and its agents, officers, employees, and contractors the 
authority, right, and privilege at any and all times, when necessary or convenient to do so, to go 
on the Casey’s Property, and do and perform any and all acts necessary or convenient to the 
carrying into effect the purposes for which this Agreement is made.  

 
8. The City grants to Casey’s and its agents, officers, employees, and contractors the 

authority, right, and privilege at any and all times, when necessary or convenient to do so, to go 
on City property, as necessary, to do and perform any and all acts necessary or convenient to the 
carrying into effect the purposes for which this Agreement is made. 
 

9. Casey’s agrees that all lines, connections, and other appliances and structures 
installed by the City, including the Lift Station, shall remain the sole and exclusive property of the 
City.  
 
 10.   Each party hereto shall protect, defend, hold harmless and indemnify the other from 
and against any and all claims, losses, damage or liability arising out of its use of this Agreement. 
 

11. This Agreement shall be perpetual and run with the land so long as Casey’s 
continues to utilize the Lift Station. 
 
 
CASEY’S RETAIL COMPANY   CITY OF HERINGTON 
 
 
 
By:  _____________________________     By: ________________________________ 
       Kendra Meyer, Authorized Signatory         Eric Gares, Mayor of Herington 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________  
Megan Lawrenz, City Clerk 
 

DRAFT



 

 
3 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description of Casey’s Property 

 
A tract of land located in the SE 1/4 of the SE 1/4 of Section 12, Township 16 South, Range 4 East 
of the 6th P.M., Dickinson County, Kansas, Described as follows; Beginning at a point on the east 
line of Section 12, Township 16 South, Range 4 East, said point being 180 ft. North of the Southeast 
comer of said Section 12, thence north along the East line of said Section a distance of 645.04 ft. to 
the Southwesterly right of way line of the Missouri Pacific Railroad; thence North 61 degrees 41 ft. 
West along said right of way line a distance of 180.88 ft. to a point on the North line of Day Street 
prolonged East from the City of Herington, Kansas; thence North 72 degrees 43 ft. West a distance 
of 40.52 ft. to a concrete monument of the East right of way line of U.S.Highway 77; thence South 
23 degrees 16 ft. West along said Easterly right of way line of U.S. Highway 77 a Distance of 99 ft. 
to a right of way concrete monument; thence South 5 Degrees 59 ft. West along said right of way a 
distance of 789.08 ft. to a point on the North right of way line of U.S. Highway 56,said point being 
50 ft. North of the south line of said Section 12; thence north 89 degrees 36 ft. East a distance of 
218.70 ft; thence North Parallel to the East line of said Section 12 a distance of 130 ft.; thence North 
89 degrees 36 ft. East parallel to the South line of said Section 12 a distance of 100 ft. to the East line 
of said Section 12 and to the point of beginning.  
 
LESS and EXCEPT the following described tracts of land, to-wit: 
A PERMANENT EASEMENT for controlled access highway right of way and removal of borrow 
material over and upon a tract of land in the Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4) of the Southeast Quarter (SE 
1/4)of Section 12, Township 16 South, Range 4 East of the 6th P.M., described as follows: 
BEGINNING at a point on the Easterly right of way line of the existing highway which point is North 
29 degrees 32 minutes West, 555.9 feet from the Southeast corner of said Quarter Section, the South 
line of said Quarter Section having an assumed bearing of North 89 degrees 26 minutes East; thence 
North 05 degrees 47 minutes East, 350.0 feet along said right of way line; thence North 23 degrees 
23 minutes East, 99.2 feet along said right of way line; thence South 61 degrees 33 minutes East, 65.2 
feet along said right of way line; thence South 17 degrees 54 minutes West to the place of beginning. 
The above contains 0.44 acre, more or less.  
 
and 
A tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of Section 12, Township 16 South, Range 4 East of the 6th 
P.M., described as follows: COMMENCING at the Southeast corner of said Quarter Section; thence 
on an assumed bearing of North 00 degrees 49 minutes 32 seconds West, 817.20 feet along the East 
line of said Quarter Section to the Easterly right of way line of the existing highway; thence North 62 
degrees 14 minutes 05 seconds West, 202.86 feet along said Easterly right of way line to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING; FIRST COURSE, thence South 05 degrees 05 minutes 55 seconds West, 356.17 
feet; SECOND COURSE, thence South 37 degrees 06 minutes 15 seconds West, 94.34 feet to said 
Easterly right of way line; THIRD COURSE, thence North 05 degrees 05 minutes 55 seconds East, 
350.00 feet along said Easterly right of way line; FOURTH COURSE, thence North 22 degrees 42 
minutes 26 seconds East, 99.17 feet along said Easterly right of way line; FIFTH COURSE, thence 
South 62 degrees 14 minutes 05 seconds East, 21.67 feet along said Easterly right of way line to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING. The above described tract contains 0.43 acre, more or less.  

DRAFT



 Approved January 2024   

 
 

Uniform Program to Incentivize Commercial Cultivation Grant  
(UPTICC) 

 
 

The City of Herington (City) hereby establishes the Uniform Program to Incentivize Commercial 
Cultivation (UPTICC) Grant Program to support business development in the City of Herington, KS. 
Funds for the program will be provided by the City for a  3-year program for 2024, 2025 and 2026. If 
successful, it will automatically renew for another 3-year period.  

 
The purpose of the UPTICC  program is to assist businesses through grants that will support 
improvements that help with the launch of a new business inside the City limits or help combat 
storefront blight. The City recognizes the value of the businesses located in Herington and the impact 
they have on the community. Grants under the UPTICC program will be provided to those projects that 
have the greatest value and preference will be given to currently operating or start-up businesses as 
well as projects that show personal financial investment from the applicant. Vacant and blighted 
buildings will be given priority for funding. City Staff have the authority to recommend or adjust project 
needs. Meaning, if there are code violations on the property, staff can recommend dollars be utilized to 
address these outstanding issues before other business needs.  
 

 
Applicant Eligibility 

1. Existing or new business (buildings which are in violation of code or considered dangerous 
structures will be given preference. The City will be allowed to conduct a building inspection on 
said building before a grant award is considered) 

2. Property owner, lessor, or lessee of properties 
3. Located within the City of Herington city limits 
4. The business location must be primarily for business purposes only. Residential apartments or 

homes do not qualify 
5. Business must be current on all taxes and City utility services. Business owners must also be 

current on City Utilities. 
6. The business will only be eligible for a maximum of $5,000 every 3-years. This can be 

broken into numerous grants. For example, if a business is only awarded $2,500 one 
year, they would be eligible and prioritized for an additional $2,500 the following year. If 
the full $5,000 is awarded initially, a business is NOT eligible for another grant for a 3-
year (36 month) window.  

7. Previous grant winners from 2021-2023 can be eligible again, only after 3 years from the 
previous date of award. Only 2021 winners will be eligible in 2024, 2022 winners in 2025 
and 2023 winners in 2026.  

8. Other applicants will be awarded grants on a first-come, first serve basis. Meaning, 
applications will be awarded as they come. If all money has been awarded, no further 
grant applications will be accepted until the following year.  

DRAFT



 Approved January 2024   

 
Use of Grant Funds 

1) Facility/façade improvement  
2) Renovation/remodel costs 
3) Acquisition of machinery and/or equipment 
4) Acquisition of inventory for business 
5) Business start-up costs (requires pre-approval from City) 

 
Prohibited use of Grant Funds 

1) Purchase of real estate or land 
2) Paying off or refinancing debt 
3) Working or reserve capital 
4) Salaries or payroll expenses 
5) Payment of any taxes or utilities 
6) Demolition 

 
Application Requirements/Process 

1. The application must be submitted to City at least 30 days before the start of the project 
2. City staff will assist the applicant as needed 
3. Applicant must provide evidence that all taxes are current 
4. The applicant must provide details of the project and the use of funds, including a summary of 

total investment. Preference will be given to applications that show matching or concurrent 
funds being expended by the property owner or business. 

5. Funded project must begin no more than 30 days from award of funds and must be completed 
within 90 days of the award unless prior extension approval is given by the City 

6. Facility improvements must be made under the City’s Code of Ordinances. 
7. Applicant must agree to participate in media coverage and promotion of the program 

 
Award Process 

1. Applications will be reviewed, evaluated by, and approved the City Manager and City Clerk 
within 30 days of  the application 

2. All grants will be presented in front of the City Commission for follow-up 
3. Award decisions are final and not eligible for appeal. However, awardees can adjust and reapply 

the next year.  
 

Compliance 
1. City staff will follow up with award recipient to ensure that funds are used for the defined 

purpose and that all program requirements are met 
2. The recipient will provide all documentation required under the program, including 

receipts, invoices, and financial documentation 
3. All facility improvement and signage projects require inspection/approval by City Staff including 

the City inspector 
4. All proceeds from the UPTICC program must be used in the manner outlined on the 

application within the timeline specified 
5. Business must remain in operation in the location specified in the application for a minimum of 

one (1) year from the date of the award 
6. Any funds not spent as approved, in the time designated, will be repaid to the City within 30 

days of ending project date 

DRAFT



 Approved January 2024   

7. Any recipient who fails to meet these compliance requirements will be required to repay the 
grant amount in full to the City (approved applicants sign personal guarantees) 

 
Funding 

1. The City will provide $20,000.00 per year for grants and operation of the UPTICC program. 
Commission may authorize additional grant funding during the year from the Special Projects 
budget if a formal vote is made to do so.  

2. The minimum grant amount per recipient will be $1,000.00 
3. The maximum grant amount per recipient will be $5,000.00 
4. The total number of grants awarded per year will be determined based on the availability of 

funds budgeted for the program and the total number of eligible applications. The availability 
of grant funds is subject to change based on Commission directives. 

 
 

The City of Herington’s Uniform Program to Incentivize Commercial Cultivation (UPTICC) Grant is 
available to all eligible business applicants regardless of race, age, gender, religious or sexual orientation. 
Awards will be based on the value of the investment to the business and the City, the ability of the 
applicant to move forward with the proposed project promptly, the ability of the applicant to repay the 
funds to the City in the event of noncompliance, and the availability of funds.

DRAFT



 Approved January 2024   

 

City of Herington UPTICC Grant Application 
 

Business name:        
Address:  City:  State:  Zip:  
Website:     
Ownership: Private   Public    
Business Structure (Proprietorship, Partnership, Corporation):                                                                           
Year business was established:   
Amount of grant funds requested:    

 

1. Why are grant funds necessary for the project to succeed financially? 
 
 

2. Describe the activity to be undertaken, the facility’s use, and the product or service produced. 
 
 

3. Classification of business 
 
 

4. Schedule: Start Date  Completion Date   
 
 

5. Does/will the applicant own or lease the project’s property? 
If leased, indicate the landlord/owner 

 
If leased, indicate the lease term 

 
 

6. Current workforce: Full-time  Part-time  Seasonal    
 
 

7. Has the business previously received an incentive from the City of Herington? 
 
 

8. Does the business meet all building qualifications and eligibility guidelines? 
 
 

9. How much money/assets/time will be personally invested in the business or approved the 
project in addition to the grant amount awarded? 

 
 

10. Is the business current on all taxes and city utilities? 
 
 

Sign and Date    
 

Approved or declined    

DRAFT



 Approved January 2024   

Uniform Program to Incentivize Commercial Cultivation  (UPTICC) Grant 

PERSONAL GUARANTEE 

The undersigned is an applicant with the Uniform program to Incentivize Commercial 

Cultivation (UPTICC) Grant with the City of Herington for a business located at 

  , Herington, Kansas, and located within the City of Herington. 
 

As an inducement for the City of Herington to accept the Applicant’s application for the UPTICC 

Grant, the undersigned hereby agrees to be personally responsible for re-payment of any grant monies 

awarded by the City of Herington to the Applicant should the Applicant fail to live up to the compliance 

terms established by the City of Herington’s UPTICC Grant. 

A photographic or facsimile copy of this Personal Guarantee Form shall be as valid as the original. 
 

EXECUTION SECTION 
 

This guarantee is executed on this  day of  , 20  . 
 

Name:   Signature:    
 

SS#:    
 

Street Address:    
 

City, State, Zip:    
 

Phone:   Email:    
 

NOTARY SECTION 
 

State of  County of  _ 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on  , by 
 

  . 
 
 

Signature – Notary Public 
 

(SEAL) My Appointment Expires:    

DRAFT


	1.16.2024 Regular Meeting Minutes
	2.06.2024 Agenda
	Water Treatment 2024 comm. update
	Water Distribution 2023 Accomplishments and 2024 Projects
	Sewer Dept. City of Herington
	Core & Main Quote
	Herington Draft Approved Ordinance 2023 - 1732
	Lift Station Agreement 2.2.2024
	UPTICC Program 2024-2026 Final



